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This is an administrative action commenced and concluded under Section S 

of the Clean Air Act (the CAA), 42 U.S.C. § 7413(d), and Sections 22.1(a)(2), 22.13(b) and 

22.18(b)(2) and (3) of the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative 

Assessment of Civil Penalties and the Revocation/Termination or Suspension of Permits 

(Consolidated Rules), as codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 22. 

Complainant is the Director of the Air and Radiation Division, U.S. Environmental 

Protection Agency (EPA), Region 5. 

Respondent is Duke Energy Indiana, Inc. (Duke), a corporation doing business in 

Indiana. 

Where the parties agree to settle one or more causes of action before the filing of a 

complaint, the administrative action may be commenced and concluded simultaneously by the 

issuance of a consent agreement and final order (CAFO). 40 C.F.R. § 22.13(b). 

The parties agree that settling this action without the ffling of a complaint or the 

adjudication of any issue of factor law is in their interest and in the public interest. 



Respondent consents to the assessment of the civil penalty specified in this CAFO 

and the terms of this CAFO. 

Jurisdiction and Waiver of Right to Hearing 

Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations in this CAFO and neither admits 

nor denies the factual allegations in this CAFO. 

Respondent waives its right to request a hearing as provided at 40 C.F.R. 

§ 22.15(c), any right to contest the allegations in this CAFO and its right to appeal this CAFO. 

Statutory and Regulatory Background 

Section 109 of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7409, requires the Administrator of the EPA 

to promulgate national primary and secondary ambient air quality standards. 

40 C.F.R. Part 50 sets forth national primary and secondary ambient air quality. 

standards as required by Section 109 of the CAA. 

Indiana State Implementation Plan 

Section 110 of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7410, requires each state to adopt and submit 

to the Administrator of the EPA a plan which provides for the implementation, maintenance, and 

enforcement of the national primary and secondary ambient air quality standards promulgated 

under Section 109 of the CAA within such state. 

40 C.F.R Part 52, Subpart P sets forth the applicable State Implementation Plan 

(SIP) for Indiana, under Section 110 of the CAA. See 40 C.F.R. § 52.770 and 52.773. 

40 C.F.R. § 52.23 states that failure to comply with any provision of 40 C.F.R. 

Part 52, or with any approved regulatory provision of a SIP, or with any permit condition 

contained within an operating permit issued under an EPA-approved program that is 
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incorporated into a SIP, shall render the person so failing to comply in violation of the 

requirement of an applicable SIP and subject to enforcement under Section 113 of the CAA. 

On December 28, 2009, EPA approved Indiana's revised continuous monitoring 

requirements for applicable air pollutants at 326 JAC 3-5 as part of its federally enforceable SIP. 

See 74 Fed. Reg. 68541. 

326 JAC 3-5-1cb)(2) of the Indiana SIP states that the owner or operator of a fossil 

fuel fired steam generator of greater than 100 million British thermal units per hour (MMBtulhr 

heat) input capacity shall continuously monitor opacity. 

326 IAC 3-5-2(1) of the Indiana SIP states that owners or operators of monitoring 

equipment installed to comply with 326 IAC 3-5 shall comply with the performance 

specifications (PS) set forth in 40 C.F.R. Part 60, Appendix B. 

40 C.F.R. Part 60, Appendix B, PS-I, Section 8-1(2) states that the owner or 

operator must install the opacity monitor at a location where the opacity measurements are 

representative of the total emissions from the affected facility and where condensed water vapor 

is not present. 

326 IAC 3-5-8 states that the owner or operator of a continuous opacity monitoring 

system (COMS) required by federal or state regulation or permit shall install, calibrate, maintain, 

operate and certify the COMS in accordance with applicable federal regulations, 326 IAC 5 and 

any applicable permit. 

On June 15, 1995, EPA approved Indiana's opacity regulations at 326 JAC 5-1 as 

part of its federally enforceable SIP. See 60 Fed. Reg. 31412. 

On July 16, 2002, EPA approved Indiana's revised opacity regulations at 326 JAC 

5-1, as a revision to its federally enforceable SIP. See 67 Fed. Reg. 46589. 
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326 lAG 5-1-1(a) of the Indiana SIP states that the opacity limitations set forth in 

326 JAC 5-1 apply to opacity, not including condensed water vapor, emitted by facilities or 

sources located in areas not listed in 326 JAC 5-1-1. 

326 JAG 5-1-2(1) of the Indiana SIP states, in pertinent part, that opacity from a 

source or facility shall not exceed an avenge of forty percent (40%) in any one (1), six (6)- 

minute averaging period. 

326 IAC 5-1-3 of the Indiana SIP sets forth temporary alternative opacity 

limitations (TAOLs). 

New Source Performance Standards 

Section 111 of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7411, requires the Administrator of the EPA 

to establish federal standards of performance for new sources within the list of categories of 

stationary sources. 

Section 111(e) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7411(e) states it shall be unlawful for any 

owner or operator of any new source to operate such source in violation of any standard of 

performance applicable to such source. 

40 C.F.R. Part 60 sets forth the standards of performance for new stationary 

sources pursuant to Section 111 of the CAA. 

40 C.F.R. § 60.11(c) states that the opacity standards set forth in 40 C.F.R. Part 60 

shall apply at all times except during startup, shutdown, malfunction, and as otherwise provided 

in the applicable standard. 

40 C.F.R. § 60.13(1)) states that all continuous monitoring systems shall be 

installed such that representative measurements of emissions or process parameters from the 

affected facility are obtained. 
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40 C.F.R. Part 60, Subpart D sets forth the standards of performance for Fossil- 

Fuel-Fired Steam Generators for which construction is commenced after August 17, 1971. 

40 C.F.R. § 60.42(a)(2) states that no owner or operator subject to the provisions 

of 40 C.F.R. Part 60, Subpart D shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from any 

affected facility any gases that exhibit greater than twenty percent (20%) opacity except for one, 

six-minute period per hOur of not more that twenty-seven percent (27%) opacity. 

40 C.F.R. § 60.45(a) states, in pertinent part, that each owner or operator shall 

install, calibrate, maintain, and operate continuous opacity monitoring systems for measuring 

opacity. See also 40 C.F.R. Part 60, Appendix B, PS-l. 

Title V (Part 70) Operating Permits 

Section 502(b) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7661a(b), requires the Administrator of 

the EPA to promulgate regulations which established the minimum elements of a permit program 

to be administered by any air pollution control agency. 

Section 502(a) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7661a(a), states it shall be unlawful for 

any person to violate any requirement of a permit issued under Title V of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 

7661 et seq. See also 40 C.F.R. § 70.7(b). 

40 C.F.R. Part 70 provides for the establishment of comprehensive state air quality 

permitting systems consistent with the requirements of Title V of the CAA. 

40 C.F.R. § 70.3 requires States to provide for the permitting of any major source 

or any source subject to Section 111 of the CAA. 

40 C.F.R Part 70, Appendix A, provides the approval status of Indiana's operating 

permit program. Indiana was granted final full approval of its operating permit program on 

November 20, 2001. See 66 Fed. Reg. 62969 (December 4, 2001). See also 326 L&C 2-7. 
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40 C.F.R. § 52.788 states that emissions limitations and other provisions contained 

in operating permits issued by the state in accordance with the provisions of the federally 

approved permit program shall be the applicable requirements of the federally approved SIP for 

Indiana for the purposes of Section 113 of the CAA and shall be enforceable by EPA. See also 

326 IAC 2-7-7(a). 

Definitions 

All terms in this CAFO shall have the defmition assigned to such terms in the 

CAA, its implementing regulations, the Indiana SIP or the applicable Title V, Part 70 Operating 

Permit (Part 70 Operating Permit). In the absence of a definition in the CAA, its implementing 

regulations, the Indiana SIP or the applicable Part 70 Operating Permit, the ordinary meaning of 

such term shall apply. 

"Affected facility" means, with reference to a stationary source, any apparatus to 

which a standard is applicable under 40 C.F.R. Part 60. See 40 C.F.R. § 60.2. 

"Continuous monitoring system" means the total equipment, required under the 

emission monitoring sections in applicable subparts, used to sample and condition (if applicable), 

to analyze, and to provide a permanent record of emissions or process parameters. See 40 C.F.R. 

§ 60.2. 

"Continuous opacity monitoring system" or "COMS' means the equipment 

required by the applicable permit, state rule, or federal regulation used to measure the opacity of 

the effluent on a continuous basis as either the optical density of the effluent gas or the opacity of 

the effluent gas. See 326 JAC 3-4-1(4). 

"Emission limitation and emission standard" means a requirement established by 

the state or EPA which limits the quantity, rate, or concentration of emissions of air pollutants on 
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a continuous basis, including any requirement relating to the operation or maintenance of a 

source to assure continuous emission reduction, and any design, equipment, work practice or 

operational standard promulgated under the CAA. See Section 302 of the CAA and 326 JAC 3- 

4-1(6). 

"Exceedance" means a condition that is detected by monitoring that provides data 

in terms of an emission limitation or standard and indicates that emissions (or opacity) are 

greater than the applicable emission limitation or standard consistent with any averaging period 

specified for averaging the results of the monitoring. See 326 JAC 3-4-1(9). 

"Facility" means any one structure, piece of equipment, installation or operation 

which emits or has the potential to emit any air contaminant. See 326 IAC 1-2-27. 

"Fossil fuel fired steam generating unit" means a furnace or boiler used in the 

process of burning fossil fuel for the purpose of producing steam by heat transfer. See 40 C.F.R. 

§ 60.41. 

"Major source" is defmed at 40 C.F.R. § 70.2 and 326 JAC 2-7-1(22). 

"Opacity" means the degree to which emissions reduce the transmission of light 

and obscure the view of an object in the background. See 40 C.F.R. § 60.2. 

"Owner or operator" means any person who owns, leases, operates, controls, or 

supervises an affected facility. See 40 C.F.R. § 60.2 and 326 IAC 1-2-51. 

"Person" includes an individual, corporation, partnership, association, state, 

municipality, political subdivision of a state, and any agency, department, or instrumentality of 

the United States and any officer, agent, or employee thereof. See Section 302(e) of the CAA. 

7 



"Stationary source" means any building, structure, facility, or installation which 

emits or may emit any air pollutant. See Section 302(z) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7602(z) and 40 

C.F.R. § 60.2. 

Federal Enforcement 

Section 113(a) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(a) states whenever, on the basis of 

any information available to the Administrator, the Administrator finds that any person has 

violated or is in violation of any requirement or prohibition of an applicable SIP or permit, the 

Administrator of the EPA shall notify, both the person who is in violation of any requirement or 

prohibition of an applicable SIP or permit and the applicable State in which the plan applies, of 

such finding. At any time after the expiration of 30 days following the date on which such notice 

of violation (NOV) was issued, the Administrator may issue an administrative penalty order in 

accordance with Section 113(d) of the CAA. 

Section 113(d) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. 7413(d), states the Administrator of the 

EPA may issue an administrative order againct any person assessing a civil penalty of up to 

$32,500, per day of violation, up to a total of $270,000, for violations that occurred through 

January 12,2009 and $37,500 per day of violation, up to a total of $295,000, for violations that 

occurred after January 12, 2009, whenever the Administrator finds that such person has violated 

any requirement or prohibition of an applicable SIP or any other requirements of Subchapter I or 

V of the CAA. See 40 C.F.R. Part 19. 

53. Section 1 13(d)(l) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 74l3(d)(1), limits the Administrator's 

authority to matters where the totai penalty does not exceed $295,000 and the first alleged date 

of violation occurred no more than 12 months prior to initiation of the administrative action, 

except where the Administrator and Attorney General of the United States jointly determine that 
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a matter involving a larger penalty amount or longer period of violation is appropriate for an 

administrative penalty action. 

Section 113(e) of the CA_A, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(e), states that in determining the 

amount of any penalty, the Administrator shall take into consideration (in addition to other 

factors as justice may require) the size of business, the economic impact of the penalty on the 

business, the violator's ff11 compliance history and good faith efforts to comply, the duration of 

the violation as established by credible evidence (including evidence other than the applicable 

test method), payment by the violator of penalties previously assessed for the same violation, the 

economic benefit of noncompliance, and the seriousness of the violation. 

Factual Allegations and Alleged Violations 

General Factual Allegations 

At all times relevant to the CAFO, Respondent owned' and operated a stationary 

Electric Utility Generating Station, located at 1097 N Country Road 950 W, Owensville, Indiana 

47665 in Gibson County (Gibson Station). 

At all times relevant to the CAFO, Respondent was a person as defined in Section- 

302(e) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7602(e). 

At all times relevant to the CAFO, Gibson Station was a major source as that term 

is defined in 40 C.F.R. § 70.2. See also 326 IAC 2-7-1(22) and Section A.4 of Respondent's 

2004 and 2009 Part 70 Operating Permits. 

At all times relevant to the CAFO, the following fossil friel steam generating units 

were operating at Gibson Station: 

Gibson Station Unit 5 is co-owned by Duke and other entities. Solely for purposes of this CAFO and for 
convenience of reference, these entities will collectively be referenced as 'Duke" or the "Respondent" 
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One dry bottom, pulverized coal-fired boiler, with a nominal heat input capacity 

of 5875 MJs4Btu/hr, which commenced construction prior to August 17, 1971 (Unit 1). 

One dry bottom, pulverized coal-fired boiler, with a nominal heat input capacity 

of 5875 MIMBtu/hr, which commenced construction prior to August 17, 1971 (Unit 2). 

One dry bottom, pulverized coal-fired boiler, with a nominal heat input capacity 

of 5897 MMBtu/hr, which commenced construction prior to August 17, 1971 (Unit 3). 

One dry bottom, pulverized coal-fired boiler, with a nominal heat input capacity 

of 5897 MMBtuJhr, which commenced construction prior to August 17; 1971 (Unit 4). 

One dry bottom, pulverized coal-fired boiler, with a nominal heat input capacity 

of 5900 MMBtuIhr, installed in 1982 (Unit 5). 

Continuous Monitoring of Opacity 

At all times relevant to the CAFO, Respondent was required to continuously 

monitor opacity at Units 1 through 5. at Gibson Station because each unit is a fossil fuel-fired 

generator of greater than 100 MMBtu/hr heat input capacity. See 326 IAC 3-5-1 (b)(2). 

At all times relevant to the CAFO, Respondent was required to continuously 

monitor opacity at Unit 5 at Gibson Station because Unit 5 (for which construction commenced 

after August 17, 1971) is a fossil fuel-fired generator of greater than 250 MMBtuJhr heat input 

capacity. See 40 C.F.R. § 60.45(a). 

At all times relevant to the CAFO, Respondent operated a COMS at Units 1 

through 5, which continuously measured opacity at each of the units. 

At all times relevant to the CAFO, the Respondent operated the COMS at Units 1 

through Sin accordance with 40 C.F.R. Part 60, Appendix B, P5-1. 

Part 70 Operating Permits and NSFS Requirements 
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At all times relevant to the CAFO, Units 1 through 5 of Gibson Station were 

subject to Indiana's opacity regulations which are a part of Indiana's federaUy enforceable SIP. 

At all times relevant to the CAFO, UnitS of Gibson Station was an "affected 

facility" as defined at 40 C.F.R. § 60.2 because the unit is a fossil fuel fired steam generating unit 

with more than 250 million MIMBtuIhr of heat input capacity for which construction was 

commenced after August 17, 1971. 

As a result, at all times relevant to the CAFO, Unit S of Gibson Station was 

subject to standards of performance for new sources, as set forth in 40 C.F.R. Part 60, Subpart D. 

At all times relevant to the CAFO, Respondent was required to have a Title V 

permit for Gibson Station because it is a major source and subject to Section 111 of the CAA, in 

accordance with 40 C.F.R. Part 70. 

On July 7, 2004, Indiana Department of Environmental Management (IDEM) 

issued a Part 70 Operating Permit to PSI Energy, Inc., (which later became Duke), for Gibson 

Station, Operation Permit No. T 051-7175-00013 (expired July 7, 2009) (hereinafter 2004 

Permit). 

On June 8, 2009, IDEM renewed Respondent's Part 70 Operating Permit for 

Gibson Station, Operation Permit Renewal No. T 051-27086-00013 (expired June 8, 2014) 

(hereinafter 2009 Permit). 

Respondent was authorized to operate Gibson Station subject to the conditions 

contained in its 2004 and 2009 Permits. 

The 2004 and 2009 Permits state that noncompliance with any provisions of the 

permits constitute a violation of the CAA. See Introduction and Section B of both the 2004 and 

2009 Permits, Section B.3 of the 2004 Permit and Section B.4 of the 2009 Permit. 
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Section C.12(a) of both the 2004 and 2009 Permits require the Respondent to 

install, calibrate, maintain, and operate all necessary COMS for Units 1 through 5. 

Section C.12(b) of both the 2004 and 2009 Permits require Respondent's COMS 

to meet the performance specifications of 40 C.F.R. Part 60, Appendix B, PS-i. 

Opacity Limitations for Units 1 through 4 

Section C.2 of both the 2004 and 2009 Permits sets forth opacity Jimitations for 

Units 1 through 4, with the exception of TAOLs set forth in Section D of the permits. 

Section C.2 of both the 2004 and 2009 Permits, in pertinent part, prohibits opacity 

from exceeding an average of forty percent (40%) in any one (1), six (6)-minute averaging 

period.. 

Sections D.1 .2(a) and D.2.2(a) of both the 2004 and 2009 Permits set forth the 

following TAOL for Units 1 through 2: When building a new fife in a boiler, opacity may exceed 

the forty percent (40%) limitation for a period not to exceed four (4) hours (forty (40), six (6)- 

minute averaging periods, consecutive or non-consecutive) OR until the flue gas temperature 

reaches two hundred fifty (250) degrees Fahrenheit, whichever occurs first. 

Sections D.3.2(a) and D.4.2(a) of both the 2004 and 2009 Permits set forth the 

following TAOL for Units 3 through 4: When building a new fire in a boiler, opacity may exceed 

the forty percent (40%) limitation for a period not to exceed five (5) hours (fifty (50), six (6)- 

minute averaging periods, consecutive or non-consecutive) OR until the flue gas temperature 

reaches two hundred fifty (250) degrees Fahrenheit, whichever occurs first. 

Sections (b) and (d) of D.l.2, D.2.2, D.3.2 and D.4.2 of both the 2004 and 2009 

Permits set forth the following additional TAOLs for Units I through 4: 
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When shutting down a boiler, opacity may exceed the forty percent (40%) 

limitation for a period not to exceed four (4) hours (forty (40), six (6)-minute averaging 

periods, consecutive or non-consecutive). 

When removing ashes from the the! bed or furnace in a boiler or blowing tubes, 

opacity may exceed the applicable limit. However, opacity levels shall not exceed sixty 

percent (60%) for any six (6)-minute averaging period and opacity in excess of the limit 

shall not continue for more than one (1), six (6)-minute averaging period, in any sixty 

(60) minute period. The averaging periods shall not be permitted for more than three 

(3), six (6) - minute averaging periods, in a twelve (12) hour period. 

78. Sections D.1.2, 112.2, D.3.2 and D.4.2 of only the 2009 Permit set forth an 

additional TAOL for Units 1 through 4, which allows Respondent one start up and shut down per 

calendar year as follows: 

When building a new fire in a boiler, opacity may exceed the forty percent (40%) 

limitation for a period not to exceed a total of seven (7) hours (seventy (70), 6 (6)- 

minute averaging periods, consecutive or non-consecutive) OR until the flue gas 

temperature reaches two hundred fifty (250) degrees Fahrenheit, whichever occurs first. 

When shutting down a boiler, opacity may exceed the forty percent (40%) 

limitation for a period not to exceed a total of five (5) hours (fifty (50), six (6)-minute 

avenging periods, consecutive or non-consecutive). 

Opacity Li,nitations for Unit 5 

79. Section D.5. 1(b) of both the 2004 and 2009 Permits states that pursuant to 40 

C.F.R. Part 60, Unit 5 shall not exceed twenty percent (20%) opacity except for one (1), six (6)- 

minute period per hour, of not more than twenty-seven percent (27%) opacity. 
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Section D.5.1(b) of both the 2004 and 2009 Permits also states tbat the opacity 

standard is not applicable during periods of start up, shut down, or malfunction. 

Specific Factual Allegations 

Unit 1 

From January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2013, the COMS data for Unit 1 

showed that Unit 1 exceeded the opacity limitation of forty percent (40%) on at least 82 separate 

occasions. 

On at least these 82 occasions, none of the TAQLs applied to Unit 1 as set forth in 

2004 and 2009 Permits. 

Unit 2 

From Janmry 1, 2009 tbrough December31, 2013, the COMS data for Unit 2 

showed that Unit 2 exceeded the opacity limitation of forty percent (40%) on at least 200 

separate occasions. 

On at least these 200 occasions, none of the TAOLs applied to Unit 2 as set forth 

in the 2004 and 2009 Permits. 

Unit 3 

From January 1,2009 through December 31, 2013, the COMS data for Unit 3 

showed that Unit 3 exceeded the opacity limitation of forty percent (40%) on at least 2,373 

separate occasions. 

On at least these 2,373 occasions, none of the TAOLs applied to Unit 3 as set 

forth in the 2004 and 2009 Permits. 

Unit 4 
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From January 1, 2009 through December31, 2013, the COMS data for Unit 4 

showed that Unit 4 exceeded the opacity limitation of forty percent (40%) on at least 230 

separate occasions. 

On at least these 230 occasions, none of the TAOLs applied to Unit 4 as set forth 

in the 2004 and 2009 Permits. 

Unit S 

From January 1, 2009 through December31, 2013, the COMS data for Unit 5 

showed that Unit S exceeded the opacity limitation of twenty percent (20%) on at least 940 

separate occasions. 

On at least these 940 occasions, Unit 5 was not otherwise excused from meeting 

the twenty percent (20%) opacity limitation under 40 C.F.R. § 60.42(a)(2). 

On at least these 940 occasions, Unit 5 was not in a period of startup, shutdown or 

malñmction. 

Prefiling Documents 

On or about June 23, 2011 and July 16, 2013, EPA issued NOVs to the 

Respondent, alleging that Respondent had violated the CAA, its implementing regulations, the 

Indiana SIP, and its 2004 and 2009 Permits. 

EPA also sent a copy of the June 23, 2011 and July 16, 2013 NOVs to IDEM. 

The Administrator and the Attorney General of the United States, each through 

their respective delegates, jointly determined that an administrative penalty action is appropriate 

for the period of violations alleged in this CAFO and the NOYs. 

On July 17, 2013 (and on numerous subsequent dates which modified the Tolling 

Agreement to extend the tolling period), EPA and Respondent entered into a Tolling Agreement 
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which states: "the period commencing on August 1, 2013 and ending on December 1, 2014, 

inclusive, shall not be included in computing the running of any statute of limitations potentially 

applicable to any action bought by the EPA" regarding the claims identified in this CAFO. (See 

Attachment A for the Tolling Agreement and subsequent Modifications of the Tolling 

Agreement). 

Alleged Violations 

Count 1 - Unit 1 

Complainant incorporates by reference the allegations contained in paragraphs 1 

through 94. 

On or about January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2013, Respondent violated 

Sections 110 and 502 of the CAA, 40 C.F.R. Parts 52 and 70, the Indiana SIP and its 2004 and 

2009 Permits by exceeding the opacity limitation of forty percent (40%) at Unit 1 on at least 82 

separate occasions. 

Respondent's violation of Sections 110 and 502 of the CAA, 40 C.F.R. Parts 52 

and 70, the Indiana SIP and its 2004 and 2009 Permits at Unit I on at least 82 separate occasions 

subjects Respondent to the issuance of an Administrative Complaint assessing a civil penalty 

under Section 113(d) of the CAA, for each day of violation. 

Count2- Unit2 

Complainant incorporates by reference the allegations contained in paragraphs 1 

through 94. 

On or about January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2013, Respondent violated 

Sections 110 and 502 of the CAA, 40 C.F.R. Parts 52 and 70, the Indiana SIP and its 2004 and 
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2009 Permits by exceeding the opacity limitation of forty percent (40%) at Unit 2 on at least 200 

separate occasions. 

Respondent's violation of Sections 110 and 502 of the CAA, 40 C.F.R. Parts 52 

and 70, the Indiana SIP and its 2004 and 2009 Permits at Unit 2 on at least 200 separate 

occasions subjects Respondent to the issuance of an Adrninislrative Complaint assessing a civil 

penalty under Section 113(d) of the CAA, for each day of violation. 

Count3 - Usd13 

Complainant incorporates by reference the allegations contained in paragraphs I 

through 94. 

On or about January 1,2009 through December 31, 2013, Respondent violated 

Sections 110 and 502 of the CAA, 40 C.F.R. Parts 52 and 70, the Indiana SIP and its 2004 and 

2009 Permits by exceeding the opacity limitation of forty percent (40%) at Unit 3 on at least 

2,373 separate occasions. 

Respondent's violation of Sections 110 and 502 of the CAA, 40 C.F.R. Parts 52 

and 70, the Indiana SIP and its 2004 and 2009 Permits at Unit 3 on at least 2,373 separate 

occasions subjects Respondent to the issuance of an Administrative Complaint assessing a civil 

penalty under Section 113(d) of the CAA, for each thy of violation. 

Count4- Usdtd 

Complainant incorporates by reference the allegations contained in paragraphs 1 

through 94. 
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On or about January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2013, Respondent violated 

Sections 110 and 502 of the CAA, 40 C.F.R. Parts 52 and 70, the Indiana SIP and its 2004 and 

2009 Permits by exceeding the opacity limitation of forty percent (40%) at Unit 4 on at least 230 

separate occasions. 

Respondent's violation of Sections 110 and 502 of the CAA, 40 C.F.R. Parts 52 

and 70, the Indiana SIP and its 2004 and 2009 Permits at Unit 4 on at least 230 separate 

occasions subjects Respondent to the issuance of an Administrative Complaint assessthg a civil 

penalty under Section 11 3(d) of the CAA, for each day of violation. 

CountS- UnitS 

Complainant incorporates by reference the allegations contained in paragraphs 1 

through 94. 

On or about January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2013, Respondent violated 

Sections 110, 111 and 502 of the CAA, 40 C.F.R. Parts 52, 60 and 70, the Indiana SIP and its 

2004 and 2009 Permits by exceeding the opacity limitation of twenty percent (20%) at Unit 5 on 

at least 940 separate occasions. 

Respondent's violation of Sections 110, 111 and 502 of the CAA, 40 C.F.R. Parts 

.52, 60 and 70, the Indiana SIP and its 2004 and 2009 Permits at Unit 5 on at least 940 separate 

occasions subjects Respondent to the issuance of an Administrative Complaint assessing a civil 

penalty under Section 113(d) of the CAA, for each thy of violation. 

Civil Penalty 

Ill. Based on analysis of the factors specified in Section 113(e) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. 

§ 7413(e), the facts of this case and Respondent's cooperation and agreement to enter into an 

Administrative Consent Order (ACO) under Section 113(a) and 114(a) to bring Gibson Station 
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into compliance with its continuous monitoring requirements, Complainant has determined that 

an appropriate civil penalty to settle this action is $199,000. 

112. Within 30 days after the effective date of this CAFO, Respondent must pay a 

$199,000 civil penalty by sending a cashier's or certified check, payable to "Treasurer, United 

States of America," to: 

U.S. EPA 
Fines and Penalties 
Cincinnati Finance Center 
P.O. Box 979077 
St. Louis, Missouri 63197-9000 

For checks sent by express mail (non-U.S. Postal Service which won't deliver mail to P.O. 

Boxes) sending a cashier's or certified check, payable to "Treasurer, United States of America," 

to: 

U.S. Bank 
Government Lockbox 979077 
U.S. EPA Fines and Penalties 
1005 Convention Plaza 
Mail Station SL-MO-C2-GL 
St. Louis, Missouri 63101 

The check must note Respondent's name, docket number of this CAFO and the billing document 

number. Alternatively, the Respondent can pay the $199,000 civil penalty electronically. For 

electronic funds transfer, make payable to "Treasurer, United States of America," and send to: 

Federal Reserve Bank of New York 
ABA No. 021030004 
AccountNo. 68010727 
33 Liberty Street 
New York, New York 10045 
Field Tag 4200 of the Fedwire message should read: 
"D68010727 Environmental Protection Agency" 

In the comment or description field of the electronic funds transfer, state Respondent's name, the 

docket number of this CAFO and the billing document number. 
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Respondent must send a notice of payment that states Respondent's name, the 

docket number of this CAFO and the billing document number to EPA at the following 

addresses when it pays the penalty: 

Attn: Compliance Tracker (AE-17J) 
Air Enforcement and Compliance Assurance Branch 
Air and Radiation Division 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5 

77 W. Jackson Boulevard 
Chicago, illinois 60604 

Nidhi K. O'Meara (C-l4J) 
Office of Regional Counsel 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5 
77 W. Jackson Boulevard 
Chicago, illinois 60604 

Regional Hearing Clerk (E-19J) 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5 
77 W. Jackson Boulevard 
Chicago, illinois 60604 

This civil penalty is not deductible for federal tax purposes. 

If Respondent does not pay timely the civil penalty, EPA may request the Attorney 

General of the United States to bring an action to collect any unpaid portion of the penalty with 

interest, nonpayment penalties and the United States enforcement expenses for the collection 

action under Section 113 (d)(5) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 741 3(d)(5). The validity, amount and 

appropriateness of the civil penalty are not reviewable in a collection action. 

Respondent must pay the following on any amount overdue under this CAFO. 

Interest will accrue on any overdue amount from the date payment was due at a rate established 

by the Secretary of the Treasury pursuant to 26 U.S.C. § 662 1(a)(2). Respondent must pay the 

United States enforcement expenses, including but not limited to attorneys fees and costs 

incurred by the United States for collection proceedings. In addition, Respondent must pay a 

quarterly nonpayment penalty each quarter during which the assessed penalty is overdue This 

20 



nonpayment penalty will be 10 percent of the aggregate amount of the outstanding penalties and 

nonpayment penalties accrued from the beginning of the quarter. 42 U.S.C. § 7413(d)(5). 

General Provisions 

This CAFO resolves all of Respondent's liability for federal civil penalties for all 

the violations alleged and/or referenced in this CAFO and the NOVs referenced in paragraph 92. 

Complainant covenants not to sue the Respondent for injunctive relief or other 

equitable relief for all the violations alleged andlor referenced in the CAFO and the NOVs 

referenced in paragraph 92 on the condition that Respondent satisfy the terms of the 

Administrative Consent Order (ACO) signed by the parties on or about the same day as this 

CAFO. 

The CAFO does not affect the rights of EPA or the United States to pursue 

criminal sanctions for any violation of law. 

This CAFO does not affect Respondent's responsibility to comply with the CAA 

and other applicable federal, state and local laws. Except as provided in paragraphs 117 and 118, 

above, compliance with this CAFO and the ACO will not be a defense to any actions 

subsequently commenced pursuant to federal laws adniinisteredby EPA. 

Respondent certifies that it is complying fully with the CAA and other applicable 

federal, state and local laws. 

This CAFO constitutes an "enforcement response" as that term is used in EPA's 

Clean Air Act Stationary Civil Penalty Policy to detentne Respondent's "full compliance 

history" under Section 113(e) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(e). 

The terms of this CAFO bind Respondent, its successors and assigns 
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124. Each person signing this consent agreement certifies that he or she has the 

authority to sign for the party whom he or she represents and to bind that party to its terms. 

125 Each party agrees to bear its own costs and attorneys' fees in this action. 

126. This CAFO constitutes the entire agreement between the parties to settie the civil 

penalties associated with the violations alleged in this CAFO. 

Duke Energy Indiana, Inc., Respondent 

t4, / Date Steve Tei 
Vice President, Midwest Regulated Operations 
Duke Energy 

Date 

,'o/y 1/14 

United States Environmental Protection Agency, Complainant 

Georg . zemi 
Dire 
Air;. ? i atioifltvision 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5 
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Consent Agreement and Final Order 
In the Mailer of: Duke Energy Indiana, Inc. 
Docket No. 

CAA-t15-2015-0006 
Final Order 

This Consent Agreement and Final Order, as agreed to by the parties, shall become effective 

immediately upon filing with the Regional Hearing Clerk. This Final Order concludes this 

proceeding pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.18 and 22.31. iT IS SO ORDERED. 

Susan Hedman 
/ 31/ 11 

Regional 
nmental Protection Agency 

Date 

Eno 
Administrator 

Region 5 
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Consent Agreement and Final Order 
In the Matter of: Duke Energy Indiana, Inc. 
Docket No. oS-0WJ5-occ0 

Certificate of Service 

I certify that I filed the original and one copy of the Consent Agreement and Final Order 
(CAFO), docket number vS aciscooft with the Regional Hearing Clerk (E-19J), 
United State Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5, 77 W. Jackson Boulevard, Chicago, 
fflinois 60604, and that I mailed the second original copy to Respondent by first-class, postage 
prepaid, certified mail, return receipt requested, by placing it in the custody of the United States 
Postal Service addressed as follows: 

Scott R. Alexander 
Taft Stettinius & Hollister LLP 
One Indiana Square, Suite 3500 
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-2023 

I certify that I delivered a correct copy of the CAFO by intra-office mail, addressed as follows: 

Ann Coyle 
Regional Judicial Officer (C-t4J) 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
77 W. Jackson Boulevard 
Chicago, illinois 60604 

I also certify that I mailed a correct copy of the CAFO by first-class mail to 

Phil Perry, Branch Chief 
Office of Air Quality I Compliance Branch 
Indiana Department of Environmental Management 
100 North Senate Avenue! Room IGCN 1003 
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-2251 

Onthe L1 dayof fUtuQriibizc. 2014. 

CERTIFIED MAIL RECEIPT NUMBER: 

ck-' r-t'-- 
Loretta Shaffer, Administrative 
Program Assistant 
AECAB, PAS 
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Attachment A: 

Tolling Agreement and. 

Modifications to the Tolling 

Agreement 



MODIFICATION OF THE JULY 17, 2013 TOLLING AGREEMENT AN]) THE 
EXTENSIONS OF TOLLING PERIOD (DATED AUGUST 30, 2013, 

NOVERMBER 12, 2013, JANUARY 14,2014, FEBRUARY 5,2014, FEBRUARY 
27, 2014, MARCH 20,2014, APRIL 15, 2014, MAY 15, 2014 ANTI) JULY 29, 2014) 
BETWEEN UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

AN) DUKE ENERGY INI)IANA, INC., REGARDING CERTAIN CLAIMS 
UNDER TIlE CLEAN AIR ACT AT ITS GIBSON GENERATING STATION 

On July 17, 2013, August 30, 2013, November 12,2013, January 14, 2014, 
February 5,2014, February 27, 2014, March20, 2014, April 15, 2014, May 15, 2014, and 
July 29, 2014, Duke Energy Indiana, Inc. (Duke Energy) and the United States 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) entered into a Tolling Agreement and 
Extensions of Tolling Period (See Attachment A) (collectively referred to as "Tolling 
Agreement"). For purposes of this Modification of the Tolling Agreement, Duke Energy 
and the EPA shall be referred to individually as a "Party" and shall be referred to 
collectively as the "Parties." 

Pursuant to Paragraph No. 6 of the July 17, 2013 Tolling Agreement, the Parties 
may modify the Tolling Agreement in writing. 

EXTENSION OF TOLLING PERIOD 

The Parties hereby stipulate and agree to modify the Tolling Agreement (See 
Attachment A) by extending the tolling period, as follows: 

Subject to the provisions of Paragraph No. 7 of the July 17, 2013 Tolling 
Agreement, the period commencing on August 1, 2013, and ending on 
December 1, 2014, inclusive, shall not be included in computing the running 
of any statute of limitations potentially applicable to an action brought by the 
EPA regarding the Tolled Claims as defined in the July 17, 2013 Tolling 
Agreement. 

All other provisioa of the July 17, 2013 Tolling Agreement, except 
Paragraph No. 1 which is hereby modified and extended, and the August 30, 
2013, November 12, 2013, January 14, 2014, February 5, 2014, February 27, 
2014, March 20, 2014, April 15, 2014, May 15, 2014 and July 29, 2014 
Extensions of Tolling Period, are incorporated by reference into this 
Modification. 

This Modification of the Tolling Agreement is effective upon execution by 
Duke Energy and without the requirement of filing with a Court and may be 
signed in counterparts. 

The undersigned representative(s) of each of the Parties certifies that he or she is fully 
authorized to enter into this Modification of the Tolling Agreement and to legally bind 

such Party to all terms and conditions of this document. This Modification of the Tolling 
Agreement shall be binding upon the EPA and Duke Energy, its subsidiaries and 

successors. 
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MODIFICATION OF TIlE JULY 17, 2013 TOLLING AGREEMENT AN!) TIlE 
EXTENSIONS OF TOLLING PERIOD (1)ATED AUGUST 30, 2013, 

NOVERNIBER 12, 2013, JArffJARY 14, 2014, FUH3RUARY 5,2014, FEBRUARY 
27, 2014, MARCH 20, 2614, A1'RH 15, 2014, MAY 15,2014 ANI) JULY 29, 2014) 
BETWEEN UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

AND DUKE ENERGY JNDIANA, IJNC., REGARDING CERTAIN CLAIMS 
UNDER THE CLEAN AIR ACT AT ITS GIBSON GENERATING STATION 

SIGNATURES 

Duke Energy, Indiana, Inc. consents to the tacns and conditions of this 
Modification oithe Toiling Agreement by its duly authorized representative. 

Duke Energy, Indiana, Inc. 

By: L 

Date: / LL / 
Printed: Scott R. Alexander 

Title: Attorney for Duke Energy Indiana, Inc. 

The United States Enviroiunental Protection Agency consents to the teniis and 
conditions of this Modification of the Totting Agreement by its duly authorized 
representative. 

United States Environmental Protection Agency 

By: 

Date: 

Printed: Nidh K. O'Meara 

Titk: Attorney for United States Environmental 
Protection Agency 
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MO 'I IFICATLON OF TIlE JULY 17, 2013 TOLLING AGREEMENT AND THE 
EXTENSIONS OF TOLLING PERIOD (DATED AUGUST 30, 2013; 

NOVERMIBER 12, 2013, JANUARY 14, 2014, FEBRUARY 5,2014, FEBRUARY 
27, 2014, MARCH 20, 2014, APRIL 15, 2014 AND MAY 15, 2014) BETWEEN 

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY AN]) DUKE 
ENERGY INDIANA, INC., REGARDING CERTAPi CLAIMS UNDER THE 

CLEAN AIR ACT AT ITS GIBSON GENERATING STATION 

On July 17, 2013, August 30, 2013. November 12, 2Q13, January 14, 2014, 
February 5,2014, February 27, 2014, March 20, 2014, April 15, 2014 and May 14,2014, 
Duke Energy Indiana, Inc. (Duke Energy) and the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA) entered into a Tolling Agreement and Extensions of Tolling 
Period (See Attachment A) (collectively referred to as "Tolling Agreement"). For 
purposes of this Modification of the Tolling Agreement, Duke Energy and the EPA shall 
be referred to individually as a "Party" and shall be referred to collectively as the 
"Parties." 

Pursuant to Paragraph No. 6 of the July 17, 2013 Tolling Agreement, the Parties 
may modify the Tolling Agreement in writing. 

EXTENSION OF TOLLING PERIOD 

The Parties hereby stipulate and agree to modify the Tolling Agreement (See 
Attachment A) by extending the tolling period, as follows: 

1; Subject to the provisions of Paragraph No. 7 of the July 17, 2013 Tolling 
Agreement, the period commencing on August 1, 2013, and ending on 
October 1, 2014, inclusive, shall not be included in computing the running of 
any statute of limitations potentially applicable to an action brought by the 
EPA regarding the Tolled Claims as defined in the July 17, 2013 Tolling 
Agreement. 

All other provisions of the July 17, 2013 Tolling Agreement, except 
Paragraph No. 1 which is hereby modified and extended, and the August 30, 
2013, November 12,2013, January 14, 2014, February 5,2014, February 27, 
2014, March 20, 2014, April 15, 2014 and May 15, 2014 Extensions of 
Tolling Period, are incorporated by reference into this Modification. 

This Modification of the Tolling Agreement is effective upon execution by 
Duke Energy and without the requirement of filing with a Court and may be 
signed in counterparts. 

The undersigned representative(s) of each of the Parties certifies that he or she 
is fully authorized to enter into this Modification of the Toiling Agreement 
and to legally bind such Party to all terms and conditions of this document. 
This Modification of the Tolling Agreement shall be binding upon the EPA 
and Duke Energy, its subsidiaries and successors. 
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MODIFICATION OF THE JElLY 17, 2013 TOLLING AGREEMENT AND THE 
EXTENSIONS OF TOLLING PERIOD (I)ATED AUGUST 30, 2013, 

NOVERMBER 12,2013, JANUARY 14,2014, FEBRUARY 5,2014, FEBR VARY 
27, 2014, MAItCJ{ 20, 2014, APRIL 15, 2014 AND MAY 15, 2014) BETWEEN 

UNITED StATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY AND DUKE 
ENERGY INDIANA, INC., REGARDING CERTAIN ClAIMS UNDER THE 

CLEAN AIR ACT AT ITS GiBSON GENERATING STATION 

SI GNATURES 

Duke Energy, Indiana, Ire. consents to the terms and conditions of this 
Modification of the Tolling Agreement by its duly author zed representative. 

Duke Energy, Indiana, Inc. 

By: 

- I-a /,,'. 
Date: // c-- 1 / JI 
Printed: Scott R. Alexander 

Title: Attorney for Duke Energy Indiana, Inc. 

The United States Environmental Protection Agency consents to the terms and 
conditions of this Modification of the Tolling Agreement by its duly authorized 
rej,psentative. 

United States Environmental Protection Agency 
$1 

Printed: NidhiK. O'h4eara 

Tide: Attorney for United States Environmental 
Protection Agency 
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MODIFICATION OF THE JULY 17, 2013 TOLLING AGREEMENT AND THE 
EXTENSIONS OF TOLLING PERIOD (DATED AUGUST 30, 2013, 

NOVERMBER 12, 2013, JANUARY 14, 2014, FEBRUARY 5, 2014, FEBRUARY 
27, 2014, MARCH 20, 2014 AND APRIL 15, 2014) BETWEEN UNITED STATES 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY AND DUKE ENERGY INDIANA, 
INC., REGARDING CERTAIN CLAIMS UNDER THE CLEAN AIR ACT AT ITS 

GIBSON GENERATING STATION 

On July 17, 2013, August 30, 2013, November 12, 2013, January 14, 2014, 
February 5, 2014, Februaiy 27, 2014, March 20,2014 and April 15, 2014, Duke Energy 
Indiana, Inc. (Duke Energy) and the United States Environthental Protection Agency 
(EPA) entered into a Tolling Agreement and Extensions of Tolling Period (See 
Attachment A) (collectively referred to as "Tolling Agreement"). For purposes of this 
Modification of the Tolling Agreement, Duke Energy and the EPA shall be referred to 
individually as a "Party" and shall be referred to collectively as the "Parties." 

Pursuant to Paragraph No. 6 of the July 17, 2013 Tolling Agreement, the Parties 
may modify the Tolling Agreement in writing. 

EXTENSION OF TOLLING PERIOD 

The Parties hereby stipulate and agree to modify the Tolling Agreement (See 
Attachment A) by extending the tolling period, as follows: 

Subject to the provisions of Paragraph No. 7 of the July 17,2013 Tolling 
Agreement, the period commencing on August 1, 2013, and ending on August 
31, 2014, inclusive, shall not be included in computing the running of any 
statute of limitations potentially applicable to an action brought by the EPA 
regarding the Tolled Claims as defined in the July 17,2013 Tolling 
Agreement. 

All other provisions of the July 17, 2013 Tolling Agreement, except 
Paragraph No. I which is hereby modified and extended, and the August 30, 
2013, November 12,2013, January 14, 2014, February 5,2014, February 27, 
2014, March 20, 2014 and April 15, 2014 Extensions of Tolling Period, are 
incorporated by reference into this Modification. 

This Modification of the Tolling Agreement is effective upon execution by 
Duke Energy and without the requirement of filing with a Court and may be 
signed in counterparts. 

The undersigned representative(s) of each of the Parties certifies that he or she 
is filly authorized to enter into this Modifidation of the Tolling Agreement 
and to legally bind such Party to all terms and conditions of this document. 
This Modification of the Tolling Agreethent shall be binding upon the EPA 
and Duke Energy, its subsidiaries and successors. 
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MODIFICATION OF THE JULY 17, 2013 TOLLING AGREEMENT AND TIlE 
EXTENSIONS OF TOLLING PERIOD (DATED AUGUST 30,2013, 

NOVERMBER 12, 2013, JANUARY 14, 2014, FEBRUARY 5,2014, FEBRUARY 
21,2014, MARCH 20,2014 AND APR1L 15,2014) BETWEEN UNITED STATES 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTIONAGENCY AND DUKE ENERGY INDIANA, 
INC., REGARDING CERTAIN CLAIMS UNDER THE CLEAN AIR ACT AT IFS 

GIBSON GENERATING STATION 

SIGNATURES 

Duke Energy, Indiana, Inc. consents to the terms and conditions of this 
Modification of the To]iing Agreement by its duly authorized representative. 

Duke Energy, Indiana, Inc. 

By: 7cAc 
Date: 

Printed: Scolt R. Alexander 

Title; Attorney for Duke Energy Indiana, Inc. 

The United States Environmental Protection Agency consents to the terms and 
conditions of this Modification of the To!ling Agreement by its duly authorized 
representative. 

United States Environmental Protection Agency 

Printed: Nidhi K. O'Meara 

Title: Attorney for United States Environmental 
Protection Agency 
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MODIFICATION OF THE JULY 17, 2013 TOLLING AGREEMENT AN]) THE 
EXTENSIONS OF TOLLING PERIOD (DATED AUGUST 30, 2013, 

NOVERMEER 12, 2013, JANUARY 14, 2014, FEBRUARY 5,2014, FEBRUARY 
27, 2014 AND MARCH 20,2014) BETWEEN UNITED STATES 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY AND DUKE ENERGY INDIANA,. 
INC., REGARDING CERTAIN CLAIMS UNDER THE CLEAN MR ACT AT ITS 

GIBSON GENERATING STATION 

On July 17, 2013, August 30, 2013, November 12, 2013, Januar' 14, 2014, 
February 5, 2014, February 27, 2014 and March 20, 2014, Duke Energy Indiana, Inc. 
(Duke Energy) and the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) entered 
into a Tolling Agreement and Extensions of Tolling Period (See Attachment A) 
(collectively referred to as "Tolling Agreement"). For purposes of this Modification of 
the Tolling Agreement, Duke Energy and the EPA shall be referred to individually as a 
"Party" and shall be referred to collectively as the "Parties." 

Pursuant to Paragraph No. 6 of the July 17, 2013 Tolling Agreement, the Parties 
may modify the Tolling Agreement in writing. 

EXTENSION OF TOLLING PERIOD 

The Parties hereby stipulate and agree to modify the Tolling Agreement (See 
Attachment A) by extending the tolling period, as follows: 

Subject to the provisions of Paragraph No. 7 of the July 17, 2013 ToIling 
Agreement, the period commencing on August 1, 2013, and ending on May 
31, 2014, inclusive, shall not be included in comjDuting the running of any 
statute of limitations potentially applicable to an action brought by the EPA 
regarding the Tolled Claims as defined in the July 17, 2013 Tolling 
Agreement. - - - 

All other provisions of the July 17, 2013 Tolling Agreement, except 
Paragraph No. 1 which is hereby modified and extended, and the August 30, 
2013, November 12, 2013, January 14, 2014, February 5, 2014, February 27, 
2014 and March 20, 2014 Extensions of Tolling Period, are incorporated by 
reference into this Modification. 

This Modification of the Tolling Agreement is effective upon execution by 
Duke Energy and without the requirement of filing with a Court and may be 
signed in counterparts. 

4.- The undersigned representative(s) of each of the Parties certifies that he or she 
is fully authorized to enter into this Modification of the Tolling Agreement 
and to legally bind such Party to all terms and conditions of this document. 
This Modification of the Tolling Agreement shall be binding upon the EPA 
and Duke Energy, its subsidiaries and successors. 
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MODIFICATION 01? THE JULY 17, 2013 TOLLING AGREEMENT AND TILE 
EXTENSIONS OF TOLLING PERIOD (DATED AUGUST 30, 2013, 

NOVERMUER 12,2013, JANUARY 14, 2014, FEBRUARY 5,2014, FEBRUARY 
27, 2014 AND MARCH 20, 2014) BETWEEN UNITED STATES 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENcY AND DUI ENE1GY JNDIANA, 
INC., REGARDING CERTAIN CLAIMS UNDER THE CLEAN AIR ACT AT ITS 

GIBSON GENERATING STATION 

SIGNATURES 

Duke Energy, Indiana, Inc. consents to the terms and conditions of this 
Modilitation of the Tolling Agreement by its duly authorized representative. 

Duke Energy, Indiana, Inc. 

Date: 4 i\ 
Printed: Scott R. Alexander 

Tile: Attorney for Duke. Encfgy Indiana, Inc. 

The United States Environmental Protection Agency consents to the terms and 
conditions of this Modification of the Tolling Agreement by its duly authorized 
representative. 

United States Environmental Protection Agchcy 

By: 

Date: 
/ 

Printed: Nidhi K. O'Méath 
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MODIFiCATION Oil THE JULY 17, 2Q13 TOLLING AGREEMENT AND TILE 
EXTENSIONS OF TOLLING PERIOD (DATED AUGUST 30;2013, 

NOYERMBER 12,2013, JANUARY 14, 2014, FEBIIUARY 5,2014 AND 
FEBRUARY 27, 2014) BETWEEN tiNTED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL 

PROTECTION AGENCY AND DUKE ENERGY JNDIANA, INC., REGARDTNG 
CERTAIN CLAIMS UNDER THE CLEAN AIR ACT AT ITS GIBSON 

GENERATING STATION 

On July 17, 2013, August 30, 2013, November 12, 2013, January 14, 2014, 
February 5,2014 and February 27, 2014, Duke Energy Indiana, Inc. (Duke Energy) and 
the United Stales Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) entered into a Tolling 
Agreement and Extensions of Tolling Period (Sec Attachment A) (collectively referred to 
as "Tolling Agreement"). For purposes of this Mod Weation of the. 'Felling Agreement, 
Duke Energy and the EPA shall be referred to individually as a cpm.ty and shall he 
referred to collectively as the "Parties." 

Pursuant to l3aragiaph No.6 of the July 17, 2013 Tolling Agreement, the Parties 
may modi' the Tolling Agreement in writing. 

EXTENSION OF TOLLING PERIOD 

The Parties hereby stipulate and agree to modi' the Tolling Agreement (See 
Atlachment A) by extending the tolling period, as follows: 

Subject to the provisions of Paragraph No. 7 of the July 17,2013 Tolling 
Agree.mentthe period commencing on August 1, 2013, and ending on April 
30, 2014, inclusive, shall not be included iii computing the running olany 
statute of limitations potentially applicable to an action brought by Ihe EPA 
regarding the Tolled Claims as defined in the July 17, 2013 Tolling 
Agreement. 

All other provision of the July 17, 20i2 Tolling Agreement, except 
Paragraph No. I which is hereby modified and extended, and the August 30, 
2013, November 12, 2013, January 14, 2014, February 5,2014 and February 
27, 2014 Extensions 9f Tolling Period, are incorporated by reference into this 
Modification. 

This Modification of the Tolling Agreeñent is effective upon execution by 
Duke Energy and without the requirement of filing with a Cowl zmd may be 
signed in counterparts. 

The undersigned representative(s) of each olihe Parties certifies that he or she 
is filly authorized to enter into Ibis Modification of the Toiling Agreement 
and to legally bind such Party to all terms and conditions of this document. 
This Modification of the Tolling Agreement shall be binding upon the EPA 
and Duke Energy, its subsidiaries and successors, 
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MODIFICATION OF THE JULY 17,2013 TOLLING AGREEMENT AND THE 
EXTENSIONS OF TOLLING PERIOD (DATED AUGUST 30,2013, 

NOVERMBER 12, 2913, JANUARY14, 2014, FEBRUARY 5,2014 AND 
FEBRUARY 27, 2014) BETWEEN TJMTED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL 

PROTECTION AGENCY ANDDUI ENERGY INDIANA, INC., REGAImING 
CERTAIN CLAIMS UNDER THE CLEAN AIR ACT AT ITS GIBSON 

GENERATING STAT! ON 

SiGNATURES 

Duke Energy, Indiana, Inc. consents to the tenns and condilions of this 
Modification of the Tolling Agicement by its duly authorized representative. 

Duke Energy, Indiana, Inc. 

I 
By: ;Dz:- -- 

Date: JUJ '- 

Printed: Scott R. Alexander 

Title: Attorney for Duke Energy Indiana, Inc. 

The United States Environmental Protection Agency consents to the terms and 
conditions of this Modification of the Tolling Agreement by its duly authorized 
representative. 

United States Ej 'ironmental Protection Agency 

By: 

Date: 

Printed: ludhi O'Meara 

Title: Attorney for United States Environmental 
Protection Agency 
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MODifiCATION OF THE JULY 17, 2013 TOLLING AGREEMENT AND THE 
EXTENSIONS OF TOLLING PERIOD (DATED AUGUST 30, 2013, 

NOVIERMBER 12, 2013, JANUARY 14, 2014 ANT) FEBRUARY 5,2014) 
BETWEEN UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

AND DUKE ENERGY INDIANA, INC., REGARDING CERTAIN CLAJMS. 
UNDER T1{E CLEAN AIR ACT AT ITS GIBSON GENERATING STATION 

On July 17,2013, August 30, 2013, November 12, 2013, January14, 2014 and 
February 5, 2014, Duke Energy Indiana, Inc. (Duke Energy) and the United States 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) entered into a Tolling Agreement and 
Extensions of Tolling Period (See Attachment A) (collectively referred to as "Tolling 
Agreement"). For purposes of this Modification of the Tolling Agreement, Duke Energy 
and the EPA shall be referred to individually as a "Party" and shall be referred to 
collectively as the "Parties." 

Pursuant to Paragraph No. 6 of the July 17, 2013 Tolling Agreement, the Parties 
may modify the Tolling Agreement in writing. 

EXTENSION OF TOLLING PERIOD 

The Parties hereby stipulate and agree to modify the Tolling Agreement (See 
Attachment A) by extending the tolling period, as follows: 

Subject to the provisions of Paragraph No. 7 of the July 17, 2013 Tolling 
Agreement, the period commencing on August 1, 2013, and ending on March 
31, 2014, inclusive, shall not be included in computing the running of any 
statute of limitations potentially applicable to an action brought by the EPA 
regarding the Tolled Claims as defined in the July 17, 2013 Tolling 
Agreement. 

All other provisions of the July 17, 2013 Tolling Agreement, except 
Paragraph No. 1 which is hereby modified and extended, and the August 30, 
2013, November 12, 2013, January 14, 2014 and February 5, 2014 Extensions 
of Tolling Period, are incorporated by reference into this Modification. 

This Modification of the Tolling Agreement is effective upon execution by 
Duke Eiergy and without the requirement of filing with a Court and may be 
signed in counterparts. 

The undersigned representative(s) of each of the Parties certifies that he or she 
is fñlly authorized to enter into this Modification of the Tolling Agreement 
and to legally bind such Party to all terms and conditions of this document. 
This Modification of the Tolling Agreement shall be binding upon the EPA 
and Duke Energy, its subsidiaries and successors. 
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MODIFICATION OF THE JULY 17, 2013 TOLLING AGREEMFNT AND THE 
EXTENSIONS OF TOLLING PERIOD (DATEI) AUGUST 30, 2013, 

NOVERMBER 12,2013, JANUARY 14, 2014 AND FEBRUARY 5,2014) 
BETWEEN UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

AND DUKE ENERGY INDIANA, INC., REGARI)1NG CERTAIN CLAiMS 
UNDER TUE CLEAN AIR ACT' AT iTS GIBSON GENERATING STATION 

SIGNATURES 

DukeEnergy, Indiana, Inc. consents to the terms and conditions of this 
Modification of the Tolling Agreement by its duly authorized representative. 

Duke Energy, Indiana, Inc.. 

By: (L / 
Date: 

Printed: Scott R; Alexander 

Title; Attorney for Duke Energy Indiana, Inc. 

Tim United States Environmental Protection Agency consents to the terms and 
conditions of this Modification of the Toiling Agreement by its duly authorized 
representative.. 

United Slates Environmental Protection Agency 

By: 

Date: q27/ JP/76 

Printed: Nidhi 1C O'Meara 

Title: Attorney for United States Environmental 
Protection Agency . 
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MODIFICATION OF THE JULY 17,2013 TOLLING AGREEMENT AND TIlE 
EXTENSIONS OF TOLLING PERIOD (DATED AUGUST 30, 2013, 

NO/ERMBER 12, 2013 AND JANUARY 14, 2014) BETWEEN UNITED STATES 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY AND DUKE ENERGY IN])L&NA, 
INC., REGARDING CERTAIN CLAIMS UNDER THE CLEAN AIR ACT AT ITS 

GIBSON GENERATING STATION 

On July 17, 2013, August 30, 2013, November 12, 2013 and January 14, 2014, 
Duke Energy Indiana, Inc. (Duke Energy) and the United States Environmental 
Protection Ageny (EPA) entered into a Tolling Agreement and Extensions of Tolling 
Period (See Attachment A) (collectively referred to as "Tolling Agreement"). For 
purposes df this Modification of the Tolling Agreement, Duke Energy and the EPA shall 
be referred to individually as a "Party" and shall be referred to collectively as the 
"Parties." 

Pursuant to Paragraph No. 6 of the July 17, 2013 ToIling Agreement, the Parties 
may modi' the Tolling Agreement in writing. 

EXTENSION OF TOLLING PERIOD 

The Parties herebystipulate and agree to modifS' the Tolling Agreement (See 
Attachment A) by extending the tolling period, as follows: 

1; Subject to the provisions of Paragraph No. 7 of the July 17, 2013 Tolling 
Agreement, the period commencing on August 1, 2013, and ending on March 
10, 2014, inclusive, shall not be included in computing the running of any 
statute of limitations potentially applicable to an actiOn brought by the EPA 
regarding the Tolled Claims as defined in the July 17, 2013 Tolling 
Agreement. 

All other provisions of the July 17, 2013 Tolling Agreement, except 
Paragraph No. 1 which is hereby modified and eEtended, and the August 30, 
2013, November 12, 2013 and January 14, 2014 Extensions of Tolling Period, 
are incorporated by reference into this Modification. 

This Modification of the Tolling Agreement is effective upon execution by 
Duke Energy and without the requirement of filing with a Court and may be 
signed in counterparts. 

The undersigned representative(s) of each of the Parties certifies that he or she 
is fully authorized to enter into this Modification of the Tolling Agreement 
and to legally bind such Party to all terms and conditions of this document. 
This Modification of the Tolling Agreement shall be binding upon the EPA 
and Duke Energy, its subsidiaries and successors. 
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MODIFICATION OF THE JULY 17, 2013 TOLLING AGREEMENT AND TUE 
EXTENSIONS OF TOLLING PERIOD (DATED AUGUST 30, 2013, 

NOVERMIiER 12, 2013 ANI) JANUARY 14,2014) BETWEEN UNITED STATES 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTEcTION AGENCY AND DUKE ENERGY INDIANA, 
INC., REGARDiNG CERTAIN CLAIMS UNDER THE CLEAN AIR ACT AT ITS 

GIBSON GENERATING STATION 

SIGNATURES 

Duke Energy, Indiana, Inc. consents to the terms and conditions of this 
Modification of the Tolling Agreement by its duly authorized representative. 

Duke Energy, Indiana, Inc. 

By: /)e:iic 1 

Date: 2I/i'f 
Printed: Scott R. Alexander 

Title: Attorney for Duke Energy thdiana, Inc. 

The United States Environmental Protection Agency consents to the terms and 
conditions of this Modification of the Tolling Agreement by its duly authorized 
re.prcsen tat ive. 

United States Envirowrnenial Protection Agency 

, 
//i 

Date: 

Printed: Nidhi K. O'Meara 

Title: Attorney for United States Environmental 
Protection Agency 
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MODIFICATION OF THE JULY 17, 2013 TOLliNG AGREEMENT AND THE 
EXTENSIONS OF TOLLING PERIOD Q)ATED AUGUST 30, 2013 AND 

NOYERMBER 12,2013) BETWEEN UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL 
PROTECTION AGENCY AND DUKE ENERGY INDIANA, JNC., REGARDING 

CERTAIN CLAIMS UNDER THE CLEAN AIR ACT AT ITS GIBSON 
GENERATING STATION 

On July 17, 2013, August 30, 2013 and November 12,2013, Duke linergy 
Indiana, Inc. (Duke l3nergy) and the United States Environmental ProtecUon Agency 
(EPA) entered into a Tolling Agreement and Extensions of Tolling Period (Sec 
Attachment A) (collectively refthed to as "Tolling Agreement"). Forpurposes oithis 
Mothfication of the Tolling Agreement, Duke Energy and the J3PA shall be refbrrcd to 
individually as a "Pall)'" and shall be referred to collectively as the "Parties." 

Puisuant to Paragraph No.6 of the July 17,2013 Tolling Agreement, the Parties 
may modify the Tolling Agreement in writing. 

EXTENSION 01? TOLLING PERIOD 

The Parties hereby stipulate amid gite to modify (lie Tolling Agreement (See 
Attachment A) by extending the tolling period, as follows: 

I, Subj6ct to the provisions of Paragraph No. 7 of the July 17,2013 Tolling 
Agreement, the period commencing on August 1, 2013, and ending on 
February 28, 2034, inclusive, shall not be included in computing the running 
of any statute of limitations potentially applicable to an action brought by (lie 
EPA regarding the Tolled Claims a defined in the July 17,2013 Tolling 
Agreement. 

2, Alt other provisions of theJuly 17,2013 'FoIling Agreement; except 
Paragraph No.1 whkhis hereby modified andextended, and the August 30, 
2013.and November 32,2013 Extensions of Tolling Period, are incorporated 
by reference into this Modification. 

'IThiiModi[ieation of the Tolling Agreement is effective upon execution by 
Duke Energy and without the requirement of filing with a Court and may be 
signed in counterparts. 

The undersigned representatives of each of' the Parties certifies that he or she 
is ulmily authorized to enter into this Modification of the Tolling Agreement 
and to legally bind such Party to all terms and conditions ofihis document. 
This Modification of the Tolling Agreement shalt, be binding upon thoEPA 
and Duke Energy, its subsidiaries and successors. 

4' 

Page lof 2 



MODIFICATION OF TIlE JULY 17, 20i3 TOLLING AGREEMENT AND THE 
EXTENSIONS OF'I'OLLING PEIHOJ) (J)ATEDAUGIJST 39, 2013 AND 

NOVERMBER 12, 2013) BETWEEN UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL 
PROTECTIoN AGENCY AND DUKE ENERGY INDIANA, INC., REGARDING 

CERTAIN CLAIMS UNDER 'DiE CLEAN AIR ACT AT IFS GIBSON 
GENERATING STATION 

SIGNATURES 

Duke Energy, Indiana, Inc. consents to the terms and eondflions of this 
Modification of the Toiling Agreement by its duly authorized representative. 

Duke Energy, Indiana, Inc. 

By: 

Date: ' 

Printed: Scott R, Alexander 

Title; Attorney for Duke Energy Indiana, Inc. 

The Uniled States Environmental Protection Agency consents to the terms and 
conditions of this Modification Of the Tolling Agreement by its duly authorized 
representative. 

United States Environmental Protection Agency 

By: 

I) ate: 

Printed: Nidhi K. O'Meara 

Title: Attorney for United States Environmental 
Protection Agency 

Pap7nf 



MOl)IF1C.A'flON or rilE JULY17, 2013 'TOLLING AGREEMENJ' AN!) TilE 
AIJGIJSr 30, 2013 EXTENSION OF TOLLING I'EltlOJ) BETWEEN UNITE!) 

S'IVl'ES ENVIRONMEN'I'AL PROTECTION M;ENCV AN!) l)IJKE ENF:Rcn' 
lNI)IANA, IN(, RECARI)JNC CER'1'AIN CLAIMS UNI)Elt Ti-fE CLEAN AIR 

ACT AT l'i'S GU3SON GENERATING STATION 

On July 17, 2013 and August 30, 2013, Duke fncrgy ludiuna, Inc. (Duke Energy) 
and (he I Jolted States I nvkcmincnLl l>rotect ion Agency (EPA) enteved into a '[nih ug 
Agreement aiicl an Extension of 'l'qlling Period, its peel i'cly (Sec A tiacluneni A) 
(collectively itlurred (ci as "Fotling Agreement"). For purposes of this MoW fleation of 
the Tolling Agreement, l)trke Energy and tim EPA shall bc referred to individually as a 

"Party'' and shall be referred to collectively as the ''Parties,'' 

Pursuant Co Paragraph No, 6 of the July I 7, 20 I 3 'Felting Agicerneut, the Pavties 
11)9)' modify (3m lolling i\greomcnt in writing. 

EXTENSIONOF 'l'011 ,I NC I'ERIOJ) 

'I'hc Parties hereby si ipulaic am! agree to maclily the Tolling Agreement (See 
Attachment A) by extending the tolling period, as follows: 

Subject to the twavi sions of Paragraph No. 7 at' the July I?, 20 13 lulling 
A greet lien I, the period CCIII mend iig on August I , 20 13, am! ci id ig oii 
January 31, 20 14, ii tel us ye, shall not be Included in computing the runu tug ci' 
any statute oft imitations poten(ia II)' applicable to an act ion brought by the 
(WA regarding the lotted Claims as defined in the July I?, 20 13 'rolling 
Agrecirienl. 

All other pn visions of the July I 7, 20 U 'I'OJ hug Agi'ecmeht, except 
Paragraph t'o. I which is herebyinodifled and extended, and the August 30, 
2013 Extension of 'lolling I'criocl, are i neorponiled by reference into this 
Modification. - 

't'ltis Modification of' the TlIiiig Agreement is effective upon execution by 
Duke Et iergy and wi I bout the requ ii'emn en! of Ailing vi I It a Coti rI amid may be 

sigi ted i it counterparts. 

'[lie undersigned represenlal i ye(s) of each of the Pam-i ics cot-lilies that he or she 

is iulhy utmthioi'rzed to enter into this Modilicition of the 'I'olhing Agreement 
and to legally bind such Pan to all terms and cojiclitions of this (h()ClItiiCtlt. 

'J'Ins Modif tent ion of' (lie 'I'oll I ng A gree.mncnt shall be bindi ig upon the El'A 
and Duke Energy, its subsidiaries and successors. 
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MOnt FICATEON 01? TIl?, JUL.)' 17, 2013 TOIIIJING AG]tEEMEN'I' ANt) Vfl 
I E 

AtiGtLS'I' 30, 2013 PX'l'KNSION OF'I'OliiNG PEItIOL) HE]'WEEN UNITEI) 
SI'A,l'l'S ENVIRONMENIA11 PItOTEC't'ION A(;ENCY ANt) DUKE ENERGY 
IN1)IANA, INC., REGAItI)ING c'EltTAIN CLAIMS (JNI)ER '11W CLEAN Alit 

ACT AT]'I'S (113S1)N dENERATING STATION 

SIGNA'fLJRES 

i)ti kc I ?ncrgy, Indiana, Inc. consents lo (he terms and (!Ofl(li( OIlS of (his 

Modification of the i'ollhig Agreement by its duly authorized representative. 

t)uke I neig', Indiaiut, Inc. 

U% 1? 

Date: ttJ U:L/ Il 
Pr nt ed Scott It. A lcaiicier 

TI tie: Attorney for Duke. Energy Indiana, I lie. 

'ftc United States Envirollmcl1tal Protection Agency consent to the terms and 

C011(ti lions of' this Mod i fication at the. Tolling Agreement by its duly authorized 
I-C preseiitat I VC. 

United States buviitiiinental Protection Agency 

Dth: 

Printed: Nidili K. O'Meara 

'I'i (Ic: Attorney for Ui i ted States Riwi roninentu I 
i'rciteetion Agency 
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MODHI CATION OF THE JULY 17, 2013 ToLLING AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
UNITEI) STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY AND DUKE 
ENERGY INDIANA, INC., REGARDING CERTAIN CLAIMS UNDER THE 

CLEAN AIR ACT AT ITS GIBSON GENERATING STATION 

On July 17, 2013, Duke Energy Indiana, Inc. (Duke Energy) and the t.Jhited States 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) entered into a Tolling Agreement (Se.e 

Attachment A). For purposes of this Modification of the July 17, 2013 Toll lag 
Agreement, l)ukc Energy and the EPA shall be referred to individual I)' as a "Party'' and 
shall be referred to collectively as the "Parties.'.' 

Pursuant to Paragraph No. 6 of (lie July I 7, 20 13 Telling Agreement, the Parties 
may mod ify the lolling Agreement in writing. 

EXTENSION OF TOLLING PERIOD 

The I'arties hereby .st ipulate and agree to modify the July 17, 2013 1 ol I ing 
Agreement by extending the tolling period, as Thllows: 

Subject to the provisions of Paragraph No. 7 of the July 17, 2013 Tolling 
Agreement, the period commencing on August I. 2013, and ending on 
November 30, 2013, inclusive (Tolling Period), shall not be included in 
computing the running of any statute of limitations potentially applicable to an 
action brought by the EPA regarding the Tolled Claims as defined in (lie July 
17,2013 Tolling Agreement. 

All other provisihns of the July 17, 2013 'l'olling Agreement, except 
Paragraph No. I which is hereby modified and extended, are incorporated by 
reibrence into this Modificanon. 

'tins Modification of theJuly t.72Q13 Tolling Agreement is effective upon 
execution by Duke IThrgy nd svtput the requirement of hung with a Court 
and may be signed in dôcint&páh. 

The undersigned representative(s) of each of the Parties certifies that he- or she 
is fully authorized to enter into this Modification of the July I 7, 2013 Tolling 
Agreement and to legally bind such Party to all terms and conditions of his 
docuthent. 'Ihis Modification of the. July 13; 2013 Tolling Agreement shall he 
binding upon the EPA and Duke Energy, its subsidiaries and successors. 
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MODIFICATION 01? TIlE JULY 17, 2013 TOLLING AGItEEMEN1' BETWEEN 
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY ANI) DUKE 
iNItRCY INDIANA, INC., REGARDING CERTAIN CLAIMS [JNDERT HE 

(:LEAN AIR ACT AT 1T5 GIBSON GENERA'IiNG STATION 

SI GNATLJItES 

J)nkc Energy. Indiana, mo. consents to the terms and conditions ol tins 
Modification ol the July 17, 2013 FoII ing Agreement by its duly authorized 
representative. - 

Duke Energy. Indiana, inc. 

(/ .L/) /' 
By: tL.// I\ (C. -\ 

Date: 

Printed: Scoil R. Alexander 

Title: Attorney lhr Duke Energy Indiana, inc. 

the United States Environmental Protection Agency consents to the terms and 
conditions ol tins ModiIiation of the July 17, 2(113 Tolling igreemenI by its duly 
nut hoixed representative. 

lii i ted States Envi ronnie.ntal P ii tect ion Agency 

7 

By: 

Date: 9/;/ac /.3 

Printed: Nidhi K. O'Mcara 

Title: Attorney For United Statçs Envi ronniental 
I'rotçction Agency 
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